N00039-10-R-0001 
Questions & Answers

	#
	Reference
	Question
	Answer/Resolution

	1
	
	On 11 December 2009 (pg. 2), a question was asked regarding Service Contract Act (SCA), if it applies.  The response was Walsh Healy applies.  In order for us to provide accurate cost and pricing, can you please confirm that SCA doesn't apply as soon as possible?
	SCA does not apply.

	
	
	
	

	2
	
	Date/Time for Industry Day?
	29 July 2010 at Naval Base San Diego in the
“Anchor's Catering & Conference Center”
(NAVBASE, Bldg. 3210, located just outside the Main Street Gate at the Corner of Yama Rd. and Main St.)

	
	
	
	

	3
	
	In the Directions for attachments 6A and 6B, number 2 says “If the assumptions are not valid, modify appropriate formulas throughout the spreadsheet.  Identify changes by highlighting all cells with changed formulas in YELLOW, describing the changes as well as the reasons for those changes in the space provided at the bottom of the Summary sheet.” 

Page 114 paragraph (b)(3)(B) states, “Failure to adhere to Attachment 6A and Attachment 6B may result in the removal of the proposal from further consideration.”  Also page 117 Clause L-328 in paragraph (e) states, “Failure to comply with the aforementioned attachments may result in your proposal being removed from further consideration” referring to attachments 6A and 6B.  

Please confirm that attachment 6A and 6B will be considered compliant if the offeror changes one or more of the assumptions and the corresponding formulas, highlights the changes, and explains the reason for the changes.  Also confirm that modifying schedule B, if necessary, to reflect the changes in 6A and 6B will be acceptable and compliant.
	Attachments 6A and 6B are minimum requirements.  An offeror may propose additional hours, labor categories or rates, but their proposal shall at least meet the established minimums as set forth in Attachments 6A and 6B.

No re-distribution of the Government-provided hours is allowed.

	
	
	
	

	4
	
	Section L, Page 108, Volume II, Offer, Section B Are the Representations and Certifications for subcontractors to be included in our proposal response or is confirmation tat they are in ORCA be sufficient?

Please be advised that because of the number of subcontractors, this file or the paper document will be quite large if included I the proposal (Number of pages in Section K multiplied by the number of subcontractors).
	Under Volume III, Offer, Section B, Provision L-317 states, “…a statement confirming that the Contractor’s Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA) is current.”

The Government will review the ORCA database.  The intent is for the contractor to confirm to the Government in their proposal that the database has been updated.


	
	
	
	

	5
	
	Section L, Page 109, Volume I, Written Capability In formation requires separate subcontracting plan from all the large "businesses". Please confirm that only the subcontracting plan for the Prime Contractor needs to be submitted in Volume III, Section D.
	Prime only.

	
	
	
	

	6
	
	Pricing Templates.  If a subcontractor does not have an adequate Accounting System, how do we gather their T&M pricing based on the template provided?  The template is only for FFP and CPIF.
	The subcontractor shall be proposed as a fim-fixed-price if they do not have an approved accounting system.  

Provisions L-317 and M-307 will be updated under Amendment 0001.

	
	
	
	

	7
	
	Can the Prime Offeror propose all ODCs for all subcontractors (large and small), or must the subcontractors propose them?  For example, the Prime Offeror will designate an amount for each subcontractor dependent on their expected volume for ODCs (ceiling value) vs. having the subcontractor propose an amount which may not be realistic.  As a Prime Offeror, we want to ensure all subcontractors propose ODCs to ensure they can bid same on all applicable task order requests.

If Prime Offeror can propose ODCs for all subcontractors, do subcontractors have to outline their ODC rates in a narrative within their own separate proposal?
	Provision L-329 allows for a prime to propose all ODCs.  However, subcontractors should include in their pricing model and narrative write-up the burdens & fees applicable to ODCs and any additional ODC costs, that will be direct charged to a task, as stipulated by clause L-329 “Other Direct Cost”.

	
	
	
	

	8
	
	The RFP does not reference a Professional or Total Employee Compensation Plan; however, the Pricing templates (Attachments 6A and 6B) include directions for a Total Employee Compensation Plan.  Is one required?  If so, please provide direction on same.

	Per FAR Clause 52.222-46 -- Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees, referenced on page 110 of 128 of the RFP, offerors will submit a total compensation plan setting forth salaries and fringe benefits proposed for the professional employees who will work under the contract. 

 Attachments 6A and 6B will be updated under Amendment 0001 to include the instructions for Total Employee Compensation Plan.

	
	
	
	

	9
	
	Attachment 7, Reference Information Sheet, block 15 requires the prime contractor to submit CPARS evaluations for all portions of the past three years on any referenced contracts.  In addition to the prime’s contracts, relevant subcontractor’s contracts are normally referenced.  Given that CPARS are considered “Business Sensitive” and proprietary, would it be acceptable if the subcontractors were allowed to submit their CPARS directly to the Government with the upload of their proprietary cost proposal package?
	Subcontractors may submit their CPARS data directly to the Government.

	
	
	
	

	10
	
	In Attachment 6A, there is a Benefit Summary tab that identifies the Total Employee Compensation Plan compilation – the directions for this tab indicate that there is guidance for completing the chart provided as an attachment to the solicitation.  The guidance for completing this chart does not appear to be included in the solicitation – will the government provide this guidance?
	See Question 8.

	
	
	
	

	11
	
	In the area describing the requirements for Section B, Extent of Participation of Small Businesses on page 114, the RFP speaks of a requirement to submit a letter of commitment for each proposed small business subcontractor.  Would the submittal of the actual signed teaming agreements, detailing the commitment between the offeror and each Small Business subcontractor, be acceptable to the Government in meeting this requirement?
	The prime contractor shall submit the signed cover page for each teaming agreement rather than the full letter detailing, “the signed teaming agreement between the prime contractor and each proposed small business subcontractor.”

	
	
	
	

	12
	
	Attachments 6A and 6B – the Contractor Site – Overtime in all years of the loaded rates tab refers to Government site overhead instead of Contractor overhead site for both Atlantic and Pacific.  Will the government provide corrected attachments?
	Attachments 6A and 6B will be updated under Amendment 0001 to correct this.

	
	
	
	

	13
	
	The formula for Total ODCs on the Summary sheet for both Attachments 6A and B is incorrect.  Will the government provide corrected attachments?
	Attachments 6A and 6B will be updated under Amendment 0001 to correct this.

	
	
	
	

	14
	
	On Page 119, L-332, the government provides the format for showing CPFF fee between Prime and Subcontractor.  Given the contract type of this procurement and the pricing sheets format, we believe this clause should be removed from the solicitation.
	The clause remains unchanged.

	
	
	
	

	15
	
	Section/Para./Page:  Section I, page 66.

Comment: Section 834, Public Law 101-189 established the DoD Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan program to reduce administrative burdens across DoD.

Question:  Would SPAWAR incorporate DFARS 252.219-7004 to allow those participating contractors in this program to submit the comprehensive plan for this proposal?
	The clause has been added.

	
	
	
	

	16
	
	Section/Para./Page: Section C, clause 952.228-0001, page 25.

Comment: Contractors vary in their methods of accumulating and recognizing costs, such as the cost of insurance.  

Question 1:  Is it the Government’s desire to have a unified evaluated cost across all offerors based on CONUS pricing only?

Question 2: If not, how should OCONUS pricing be treated in the proposal?
	Question 1:  Yes.

Question 2:  N/A

	
	
	
	

	17
	
	Section/Para./Page: Section L, provision L-343(d), page 120.

Comment: A large company’s list of credit references, including suppliers, would be extensive.

Question:  If a firm has a Standard & Poor’s credit rating, or a Dun & Bradstreet report, can this current information be provided as the credit and supplier reference the solicitation requires?

	Yes.

	
	
	
	

	18
	
	Section/Para./Page:  Section B, page 2

Comment: Predetermined fee ceilings

Question: Establishing ceiling fees lower than the FAR or weighted guidelines prior to requirement being defined in a specific task order transfers additional risk to the contractor.  Would the Government consider using the 8% target fee for cost type effort and 10% on fixed priced effort on this procurement? 

	No.

	
	
	
	

	19
	
	Section/Para./Page: All.

Comment: Attachments 6A and 6B are requesting pricing for the Atlantic and Pacific regions. 

Question: Should all hours be priced using CONUS rates only?  If not, please provide the estimated hours by labor category for OCONUS locations.
	Hours should be priced using CONUS rates only.

	
	
	
	

	20
	
	Stand Form 33 (SF 33), Pg. 1 and Section L, pgs. 121-122: If there is an issue delivering an Offeror’s proposal submission in accordance with L-349, are we to hand deliver our proposal submission to Item 7 on the SF 33, per Item 8?
	No.  Offeror’s shall meet the terms of provision L-349.

	
	
	
	

	21
	
	Section H, clause H-349(a), page 59: “The costs for acquisition, usage or rental of General Purpose Office Equipment including, but not limited to, Typewriters, word processing machines, computers, computer time, printers, reprographic and xerographic copying machines, telecopiers, telephone equipment, and postage machines are considered overhead expenses and shall not be directly reimbursable under this contract.”  If a Contractor’s Disclosure Statement, approved by DCAA, states these types of costs are allowed to be proposed and invoiced as Other Direct Costs (ODCs), regardless of contract type, will this be accepted and allowed under the contract?
	The aforementioned clause defines office equipment as an indirect costs.  Should your company bill these costs as a direct charge, your proposal should add these costs to the Government-provided ODC amount.   If these costs are not identified in your proposal as a direct charge to the contract, they will be disallowed as an ODC on the contract.

	
	
	
	

	22
	
	Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications:
There is not an adequate diversity of qualifications for several individual labor categories, specifically within manufacturing (i.e. sheet-metal worker, welder, etc.)  in order to perform taskings under this Contract.  Is the Offeror able to add individual labor categories and the corresponding job description in order to ensure there is an adequate diversity of individual labor categories for this Contract and price same within the Pricing Model (Attachment 6a) towards direct labor?  If yes, how are the additional hours accounted for in your evaluation since we are not able to change the hours provided (Ref. L-328)?
	See Question 3.

	
	
	
	

	23
	
	Attachment 3, Statement of Work:
Paragraph 2.3, Web Tools, page 2: “contract will maximize the use of web-enabled tools for management.” Since both SSC-P and SSC-L will be issuing Delivery Orders, will the same tools and templates be utilized by both Service Centers? If yes, can you please provide the templates to ensure Offerors are able to respond quickly to requests for taskings under same?  If not, recommendation would be that they should be in order to minimize administrative and cost burdens.
	Yes.  They will be provided at a later date.

	
	
	
	

	24
	
	Attachment 6a, Total Employee Compensation Plan:
Guidance for completing the total employee compensation plan and supporting salary data is not provided as an attachment to the RFP, as stated in the instructions tab (red font) of said Attachment.  Please provide same in order for Offeror to be compliant.
	See Question 8.

	
	
	
	

	25
	
	Enclosure (3) of Attachment 5, Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP), is an Overall Contract Performance Requirements Summary Chart.  For the Evaluation Factor, “Meeting Goals for Small Business Participation” both Part I and II, it defines an acceptable performance as being within a specified percentage of “its goals for small, disadvantaged, and women-owned business participation.”  However the attachment goes on to state that the contractor must come within 60% of list goals for five categories of Small Businesses, specifically: Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB); Women-Owned Small Business (WOSB); Veteran-Owned Small Business (VOSB); Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Business (SDVOSB); HubZone Small Business (HubZone)and Historically Black Colleges or Universities (HBCU) and Minority Institutions (MI).   The percentage goals listed for these five categories are the same as those listed in the table under M-307(d), Factor 2, Extent of Small Business Participation of the RFP.  This same paragraph of M-307(d) states, “Additionally, the extent of participation of small business shall meet, at a minimum, three (3) of the five (5) minimum proposed percentages in the table below.” 
Since the contractor’s Small Business Participation proposal only needs to meet any three of the five category goals listed in the table in M-307(d), Factor 2, it does not appear appropriate to grade the contractor’s performance on meeting the listed goals for all five category goals. 
Also as it is written the QASP Evaluation Factor appears in places to specify that the percentage goals are for only two of the Small Business categories, namely “disadvantaged, and women-owned.”   This could be interpreted to mean that meeting the goals for these two categories is more important than meeting the goals for the other categories. 
On page 3-3 of the QASP twice there is a statement that specifies of “its goals for each of the specific categories of small, disadvantaged, and women-owned business (listed on the previous page).”   This phrase is confusing because “its” refers to the contractors goals and they are not listed on the previous page.
Recommend this entire section of the QASP be changed throughout to specify that the contractor will be evaluated only on meeting various percentages at various times of the Small Business Participation goals set for each Small Business Category in the Small Business Participation Data, attachment 8, submitted by the contractor .
	The QASP will be updated under Amendment 0001.

	
	
	
	

	26
	
	Attachment 4, DD Form 254, paragraph 10.b. indicates the Contractor will not require access to Restricted Data.  The DD Form 254 for the present contract indicates that the Contractor will require access to Restricted Data.  Should the Solicitation DD Form 254 indicate the Contractor will require access to Restricted Data?
	The DD 254 has been properly marked.

According to the Defense Security Service DD254 Guide and the National Industrial Security Program (NISPOM) Operation Manual, Restricted Data is all data concerning the design, manufacture, or utilization of atomic weapons; the production of special nuclear material; or the use of special nuclear material in the production of energy, but shall not include data declassified or removed from the RD category pursuant to section 142 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.  

	
	
	
	

	27
	
	In the Government’s evaluation of cost realism, can the Government consider any information not included in the offeror’s proposal?
	The Government will use multiple sources of industry rate information as well as input from DCAA and DCMA.

	
	
	
	

	28
	
	What needs to be submitted with regards to the teaming agreement, the cover sheet or the signature sheet?
	The signature sheet should be submitted.

	
	
	
	

	29
	
	Will the slides from Industry Day be posted?
	Yes.  They are posted on the SPAWAR E-CC.

	
	
	
	

	30
	
	1st Reference: Section K, Page 109, paragraph 252.234-7001, Notice of Earned Value Management system (APR 2008); 2nd Reference: Page 110, Section L does not include DFARS 252.234-7001 clause by reference. The 1st Reference provides the requirements that must be addressed concerning Earned Value Management EVM. However, the 2nd Reference does not specifically address where this information shall be incorporated in the proposal response.  Would it be acceptable to place this response in Volume II, Cost, Section B (i.e. Miscellaneous)?
 Earned Value Management System (EVMS) Comments:
The application of EVMS, as required by RFP Clause 252.234-7001, has been a long standing debate for the C4ISR installation business. 
It is understood that when the government funds the building of ships, aircraft and larger systems, keeping track of schedule, costs and progress must account for an array of variables far exceeding those of the typical installation task order. A fully compliant EVMS is designed to meet the needs of these most complex systems.
 The $50M threshold for EVMS application works well for such large systems, and is meant to apply to a single contract value.  Although the Global C4ISR Installation Contract ceiling crosses this threshold, the individual contracts (task orders) do not.  Our experience with the Sea Enterprise contract, with over 1450 task orders, indicates an average contract value of about $400K.
The complexity in this case is associated with managing hundreds of smaller independent taskings being executed in a dynamic environment.  The marginal benefit (if any) and the costs associated with a fully compliant EVMS (training, time, reporting, etc) may not be justified nor add any value.
Additionally, smaller firms seldom have fully compliant EVMS, which adds another level of complexity and cost.
 Recommendation:
1.  Modify the RFP clause to correlate with Attachment 3, paragraph 4.1.4 wording.
For instance:  
The offeror shall propose an EVMS that is tailored to meet the requirements of Attachment 3: Statement of Work, Section 4.1.4, using the guidance of the Earned Value Management Implementation Guide (EVMIG).
	Any Task Order that exceeds the 20 million dollar threshold shall completely comply with the DFARS.  All tasking that does not exceed this stated threshold will comply with 4.1.4 of the SOW. 


	
	
	
	

	31
	
	Labor categories "Management and Program Technician 1, 2 and 3" don't appear to have related tasking in the SOW.  Which SOW paragraphs are they intended to support?
	These positions are intended to support the performance of management functions.

	
	
	
	

	32
	
	With a revised 6A & 6B pricing model as part of Amendment 0001, are we able to modify the existing model to match the changes or does all info need to be uploaded into the new model?
	Proposals shall conform to Attachments 6A and 6B dated 27 July 2010.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure the minimum requirement is met.

	
	
	
	

	33
	
	Section L, pg. 122, Defense Base Act (DBA) - Was the clause to utilize a USACE contract with CAN utilizing Rutherford International for DBA, incorporated in error?  If not, please advise on the allowability of this clause for this effort.
	No submissions pertaining to the Defense Base Act are required in the proposal for contract award.  If applicable, all Defense Base Act requirements will be defined within individual task order RFPs.  The following provisions will be removed from the RFP:

952.228-0002 DEFENSE BASE ACT INSURANCE RATES – LIMITATION – FIXED-PRICE CONTRACTS (MAR 2009)

952.228-0003 DEFENSE BASE ACT INSURANCE RATES – LIMITATION – COSTREIMBURSEMENT,
LABOR-HOUR, AND TIME-AND-MATERIALS CONTRACTS (MAR 2009)

	
	
	
	

	34
	
	We understand that Rutherford is the exclusive broker for U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE) and U.S. Dept. of State (DOS) contracts.  However, Rutherford and insurance carrier C N A are not the exclusive broker and insurance carrier for DOD contracts requiring DBA insurance.  If a company has a corporate DBA policy already in place with another company for DOD contracts, would the Government consider this acceptable for this requirement?
	No submissions pertaining to the Defense Base Act are required in the proposal for contract award.  If applicable, all Defense Base Act requirements will be defined within individual task order RFPs.

	
	
	
	

	35
	
	Section/Para./Page: Section C, clause 952.228-0001 WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE (DEFENSE BASE ACT) (MAR 2009), page 25.

Comment: The clause states, “The contractor shall submit proof of a valid DBA Insurance policy with CAN Insurance for the Prime and their Subcontractors at every tier prior to performance of the contract.”

Question: Will proof of insurance be required only once value is determined at a task order level?
	No submissions pertaining to the Defense Base Act are required in the proposal for contract award.  If applicable, all Defense Base Act requirements will be defined within individual task order RFPs.

	
	
	
	

	36
	
	Page 52 of the Statement of Work, Attachment 3, states, “Each traveler to a foreign country must also submit a Personal Protection Plan and shall have…”  Would the Government please define Personal Protection Plan and if such plan is a Government form, indicate where that form might be found?
	The requirement is at the task order level.  The form will be uploaded to the SPAWAR E-CC.

	
	
	
	

	37
	
	Small Businesses that do not have an approved accounting system must be bid as FFP ODC.  How does that direct labor get calculated in small business plan evaluation?
	Assign labor categories/hours to the subcontractor who will then identify their proposed loaded rates /total fixed price cost based on hours assigned in Attachment 6B.

	
	
	
	

	38
	
	Comment: We understand that subs that do not have approved accounting systems must be proposed as FFP and that for cost realism purposes will not be adjusted.

Question 1: Should subs who don’t have approved accounting systems include profit in their FFP rates?  

Question 2: And, if profit is permitted will this affect the Attachment 6A – Prime Price Model ‘Summary’ worksheet which is taking total labor cost and dividing between different contract types where fee (or profit) is then applied?
	1.  No
2.  No

	
	
	
	

	39
	
	Can you please clarify that we are to provide a Total Employee Compensation Plan vs. a Professional Employee Compensation Plan?  The revised Attachment 6a, mentions both.
	Per FAR Clause 52.222-46 -- Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees, referenced on page 110 of 128 of the RFP, offerors will submit a total compensation.  

The previous answer related to this question stated the following:  “Attachments 6A and 6B will be updated under Amendment 0001 to include the instructions for Total Employee Compensation Plan.”

The answer should have referred to the “Compensation Plan for Professional Employees”.   A “Total Employee Compensation Plan” was referenced in error.  The “Compensation Plan for Professional Employees” is the requirement and it will be satisfied by completing the worksheets within Attachments 6A & 6B.

	
	
	
	

	40
	
	If we are to include additional labor categories, must we include hours for same?  For instance, due to Prime not being able to re-distribute hours and only being able to add hours, we do not want to cause the costing to be unrealistic when we may not require the number of hours provided.  Therefore, to not be able to add labor categories without hours, could be deemed unrealistic.  Furthermore, if there is a different cost pool associated with a rate (i.e. Manufacturing), would it be justifiable to only include same in the cost summary?
	The worksheet within Attachment 6A entitled “Other Labor Data” allows for offerors to crosswalk company labor categories to RFP labor categories.  Any added labor categories and associated hours shall be in addition to the requirement defined in Attachment 6A.  

	
	
	
	

	41
	
	Clarification to Question 38

Comment: We understand that subs that do not have approved accounting systems must be proposed as FFP and that for cost realism purposes will not be adjusted.

Question 1: Should subs who don’t have approved accounting systems include profit in their FFP rates?  

Question 2: And, if profit is permitted will this affect the Attachment 6A – Prime Price Model ‘Summary’ worksheet which is taking total labor cost and dividing between different contract types where fee (or profit) is then applied?
	The correct answers to the questions are listed below.  Question 1 should have read “No”.  All profit and fee is entered on Attachment 6A.
1.  No
2.  No

	
	
	
	

	42
	
	What is a misc. ODC?  
	Miscellaneous ODCs are a stated value that represents the minimum requirement.   They are a placeholder value in the proposal for use during post award execution.  

Clause H-349 lists items that are not directly reimbursable to this contract.  Provision L-329 gives instructions for offerors to ensure proposals are consistent with offeror’s accounting system or disclosure statement.  

	
	
	
	



The Government has received additional questions that are not listed above.  These questions are staffed for resolution.  Answers will be posted asap.
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